
Northern Inyo Hospital

April 18 2018 Regular Meeting
April 18 2018 Regular Meeting - April 18 2018 Regular Meeting

District Board Agenda, April 19 2018 Regular Meeting

District Board Agenda, April 18 2018 Regular Meeting

Recommended Capital Budget for 2018/2019

Recommended Capital Budget for 2018/2019

Financial and Statistical Reports as of February 2018

Financial and Statistical Reports, February 2018

Policy and Procedure approval, Chart Check Guidelines

Policy and Procedure approval, Chart Check Guidelines

Policy and Procedure approval, Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use, or Disclosure of PHI

Policy and Procedure approval, Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information

Policy and Procedure approval, Auditing of Employee Access to Patient Information

Policy and Procedure approval, Auditing of Employee Access to Patient Information

Medical Staff Services Pillars of Excellence

Medical Staff Services quarterly Pillars of Excellence

Policy and Procedure (Board of Directors), Attendance at Meetings

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Attendance at Meetings

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), NIHD Board of Directors Meetings

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), NIHD Board of Directors Meetings

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Role of Directors

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Role of Directors

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Reimbursement of Expenses

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Reimbursement of Expenses

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Election Procedures and Related Conduct

Policy and Procedure approval (Board of Directors), Election Procedures and Related Conduct

Consent Agenda

2013 CMS Survey Validation Monitoring
Policy and Procedure Annual Approvals
District Board Minutes, March 21 2018 Regular Meeting

............................................3

...........................................................6

...................................................12

.....................................20

22

28

...........................................33

...35

36

..............38

40

41

.................................................................43
................................................................48

.......................................56

1



Chief of Staff Report for April 2018

Medical Executive Committee Report for April 2018
Medical Staff Policies, Procedures, Protocols, Order Sets

..............................................65
...................................66

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

2

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
DRAFT AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

April 18, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Northern Inyo Hospital Board Room at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 

 
 
  

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of three 

minutes each). 

3.   New Business 

A. Recommended Capital Budget for 2018/2019 (action item). 

B. Financial and Statistical Reports as of February 2018 (action item). 

C. Policy and Procedure approval, Chart Check Guidelines (action item). 

D. Policy and Procedure approval, Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or  

     Disclosure of Protected Health Information (action item).  

E.  Policy and Procedure approval, Auditing of Workforce Access to Patient Information (action  

     item). 

            F. Workforce Experience Committee report (information item). 

            G. Patient Experience Committee report (information item). 

H. Quarterly Medical Staff Services Pillars of Excellence (action item). 

             I. Policy and Procedure approval, Board of Directors: Attendance at Meetings (action item). 

             J. Policy and Procedure approval, Board of Directors: Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of  

                 Directors Meetings (action item). 

            K. Policy and Procedure approval, Board of Directors:  Basis of Authority: Role of Directors  

                 (action item). 

            L.  Policy and Procedure approval, Board of Directors: Reimbursement of Expenses (action item). 

            M. Policy and Procedure approval, Board of Directors: Election Procedures and Related Conduct  

                  (action item). 

            N. Formation of Ad Hoc Committee to fill District Zone 3 Board vacancy (action item). 

 

 

3



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, April 18, 2017 
 
 

4/11/2018, 12:41 PM 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
        4.    Approval of minutes of the March 21 2018 regular meeting 

5. 2013 CMS Survey Validation Monitoring 

6. Policy and Procedure annual approvals 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

7. Chief of Staff Report; Richard Meredick, MD: 

A.  Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Order Sets (action items): 

1. Bite Guidelines, Animals 

2. DI – Timely Performance Standards 

3. Discharge Instructions Emergency Department 

4. Pediatric Order Verification Overnight 

5. Radiology Critical Indicators for Chart Review Policy 

6. Safely Surrendered Baby Policy and Procedure 

7. Scope of Service for the Emergency Department 

8. Standards of Care for the Emergency Department 

B.  Annual Review (action item): 

1. Emergency Room Service Critical Indicators 

C.  Medical Staff Appointments/Privileges (action items): 

1. Gabriel Overholtzer, DDS (dentistry) – Provisional Active Staff (limited license 

practitioner) 

2. Kinsey R. Pillsbury, MD (radiology) – Consulting Staff       

    8.  Reports from Board members (information items). 

   9. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

            A.  Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (estimated public session date for  

                  discussion yet to be determined) (Health and Safety Code Section 32106).  

            B. Discussion of a personnel matter (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957).  

            C. Discussion of labor negotiations, Agency Designated Representative Kevin Dale; Employee  

                 Organization AFSCME Council 57 (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6). 

      10.  Return to open session and report of any action taken in closed session.  

      11.  Adjournment 

 

4



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, April 18, 2017 
 
 

4/11/2018, 12:41 PM 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Chart Check Guidelines 
Scope: ICU, Med/Surg & Perinatal Department:  ICU/CCU, Medical/Surgical, Perinatal 
Source: Manager ICU/Medical-Surgical Effective Date: 
 
 
PURPOSE:  
Verification of the completion and processing of physician or Advanced Practice Provider (APP) orders and other 
documentation in the medical record and electronic medical record (EMR) 
 
POLICY: 
Inpatient units will check the medical record, including physician & APP orders, once daily on the PM shift to assure 
orders are being carried out as written and required documentation has occurred.  If work load doesn’t allow time for 
completion of daily chart check, the task will be passed on to the oncoming shift. 
 
PROCEDURE:  

A. It will be the responsibility of the PM licensed nurse to ensure that: 
1. Within the first 24 hours of admission (the time of admission is located on the patient’s face sheet): 

a. Home Medication Verification has been completed by an NIHD RN. This may be done in the ED, 
Pre-operative area or on the inpatient unit; however it only needs to be done once upon entrance into 
the system to determine home medications prescribed and being taken by the patient. 

b. Medication Reconciliation has been completed by the physician or APP. 
c. VTE Assessment has been completed in the EHR. 
d. Any noted wound has an initial photograph documentation completed. 
e. Any patient with an indwelling urinary catheter has documentation of rationale for device. 
f. Any patient with a central line has physician documentation of the rationale for device. 
g. Any patient in restraints has a restraint order that has been authenticated by the physician or APP 

within policy.  Nursing documentation per policy is in compliance. 
h. Nursing care plan has been initiated based upon diagnosis and individualized to the patient needs. 
i. Case Management intake assessment has been completed. 
 

2. Throughout patient stay - all orders have been correctly processed. 
a. Check orders to see if they have been completed. 
b. Review to determine that consultants have been contacted and/or have seen the patient within 24 

hours of the order. 
c. All paper documents in the non-electronic portion of the patient record have correct patient labels. 
d. All outstanding orders have been brought to the attention of the charge nurse/department clerk. 
e. Verify that a progress note has been written by a physician or APP on all observation or admitted 

patients.  (Swing patients must be seen at least weekly by physician/APP with a progress note.) 
f. Nursing care plan has been updated as goals are met or change. 

 
3. Communication of chart check results: 

a. Concerns related to missing items will be communicated to the physician/APP directly if they are 
present on the unit during the hours of 2200 to 0700 or via telephone if they impact patient care 
causing an immediate concern. 

b. Concerns related to missing items that do not cause immediate concern will be discussed at shift 
change by the off going/on coming RNs.   

c. RN performing the chart check will document “24 hour chart check completed” in the progress note 
within the electronic health record of the patient. 

 
References: 

1.  

Comment [AK1]: Pharmacy technicians are also 
doing this.  

Comment [AK2]: Current practice is that any 
wounds besides surgical wounds require a photo 
upon admission, as needed, and on discharge. Photos 
of surgical wounds are only taken when warranted 
due to the nature of the wound and as needed (ex: we 
don’t take pictures of a routine knee arthroplasty).  

Comment [RC3]: Daily necessity 

Comment [RC4]: Daily  

Comment [RC5]:  
 This includes the time and date of each entry 
(orders, reports, notes, medications etc.) . 
 

Comment [RC6]: Care plan must be evaluated 
each shift and closed when patient is discharged to 
transferred to another facility 

Comment [RC7]: This has not been built. 
Current practice the nurse would review CPOE and 
initial and date.  I am hoping with Athena the orders 
will not be printed out.  

20



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Chart Check Guidelines 
Scope: ICU, Med/Surg & Perinatal Department:  ICU/CCU, Medical/Surgical, Perinatal 
Source: Manager ICU/Medical-Surgical Effective Date: 
 
 
 
Cross Reference P&P: 

1.  
 
 
Committee Approval Date 
NEC 4/4/18 
Board of Directors  
Board of Directors’ Last Review  
 
Developed: 3/18ta 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supercedes: 
 
 

21



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
MEDICAL RECORDS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Privacy Officer Effective Date: 4-26-2018 
 

 
PURPOSE:  
 
To define the policy and procedures for investigations of suspected breaches of the 
privacy or security of protected health information and the reporting of such breaches to 
legally required entities.  
 
Definitions  
 
Breach/Unauthorized Activity - The unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure 
of PHI which compromises the security or privacy of the PHI. 
 
Compromise the Security or Privacy of PHI – An act or omission that poses a 
significant risk of financial, reputational or other harm to the subject of PHI. 
 
Disclosure - The release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any other 
manner of information outside the entity holding the information. 
 
Electronic Protected Health Information or ePHI: Is PHI that is transmitted by 
electronic media or is maintained in electronic media. For example, ePHI includes all 
PHI that may be transmitted over the Internet, or stored on a computer, a CD, a disk, 
magnetic tape, jump drive (USB), or other media. 
 
Protected Health Information (PHI) - individually identifiable health information that 
is transmitted or maintained in any form or medium, including electronic PHI. 
 
Unsecured PHI – PHI that is not secured through use of technology or methods 
approved by the Secretary of Health and Human Services.  
 
Use – The sharing, employment, application, utilization, examination, or analysis of 
individually identifiable information within an entity that maintains such information. 
 
Workforce:  Persons whose conduct, in the performance of their work for NIHD, is 
under the direct control of NIHD or have an executed agreement with NIHD, whether or 
not NIHD pays them. The Workforce includes employees, NIHD contracted and 
subcontracted staff, NIHD clinically privileged Physicians and Allied Health 
Professionals (AHPs), and other NIHD health care providers involved in the provision of 
care, treatment, or services of NIHD’s patients. 
 
 
 

22



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
MEDICAL RECORDS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Privacy Officer Effective Date: 4-26-2018 
 

 
POLICY:   
 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) shall comply with breach notification 
requirements under federal and state law, including the HIPAA privacy and security 
regulations, the HITECH regulations, the California Medical Information Act, and other 
relevant regulations. The Compliance Department shall investigate potential breaches of 
PHI and ePHI, determine whether notification is required, and manage the investigation, 
notification, and post-investigation process, as applicable. 
 

A. Reporting Potential Breaches 
 

1. NIHD workforce are required to immediately report unauthorized 
acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of PHI (“Breaches”) to the 
Compliance Department utilizing the reporting form provided by NIHD 
on the NIHD Intranet in person, via interoffice email, or via email.  
Breaches are determined to be discovered when made known to NIHD 
workforce other than the workforce member(s) who engaged in the 
unauthorized activity. 
 

2. Examples of potential Breaches that the workforce should report include 
but are not limited to: 
 
a. PHI mailed, faxed or electronically transmitted to the wrong recipient ; 
b. Accessing the medical record of a co-worker, colleague, friend, family 

member or celebrity without authorization; 
c. Lost or stolen computers, laptops, PDAs, or other electronic 

computing devices; 
d. Lost or stolen medical records, computer disks or other paper or 

electronic files; 
e. Unlawful verbal disclosures of PHI; 
f. Posting PHI on public websites; 
g. Malicious software virus detected in electronic information systems 

used in connection with PHI; and 
h. Intentional access to PHI for non-treatment, non-payment or non-

healthcare operation purposes. 
 

B. Preliminary Investigation 
 
The Privacy Officer or designee shall conduct a preliminary investigation of all 
reports of unauthorized activity, and shall: 

23



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
MEDICAL RECORDS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Privacy Officer Effective Date: 4-26-2018 
 

 
 

1. Determine if the unauthorized activity involved Unsecured PHI or other 
individually identifiable information subject to protections under state or 
federal laws. 

2. Confirm additional facts underlying each report of unauthorized activity 
by reviewing the submitted PHI Breach Report form.  

 
C. Assessment of Potential Breaches 

 
In assessing a potential breach, the Privacy Officer shall: 
 

1. Determine whether the potential breach fits within one of the following 
exceptions to the definition of Breach: 

 
a. The unauthorized activity involved the unintentional acquisition, 

access, or use of PHI by an NIHD workforce member; 
b. The unauthorized activity involved the inadvertent disclosure of PHI 

from an authorized workforce member or authorized individual within 
NIHD to another authorized member or authorized individual within 
NIHD; or 

c. The unauthorized activity involved unauthorized disclosures in which 
an unauthorized person to whom PHI was disclosed would not have 
been able to retain the information. 

 
2. Conduct an assessment to determine whether the unauthorized activity 

poses a significant risk of financial, reputational or other harm to the 
subject of the PHI. The assessment may be conducted using the HIPAA 
Breach Decision Tool and Risk Assessment Documentation which may be 
found in the California Hospital Association Privacy Manual; 

3. Determine whether steps were or should be taken to mitigate any known 
harm arising from the unauthorized activity; 

4. Determine whether individual, governmental or other notice is required 
under federal or state law and oversee the provision of such notice; and 

5. Create and maintain documentation regarding the investigation, risk 
assessment and related decision-making regarding the Privacy Officers 
review and response to the unauthorized activity. 

 
D. Notification 

 
1. Breach of PHI 

24



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
MEDICAL RECORDS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Privacy Officer Effective Date: 4-26-2018 
 

 
 
When the Privacy Officer determines a Breach has occurred, notification shall 
be made in accordance with the following: 

 
a. Patient notice timing: Patient notification must be made without 

unreasonable delay and in no event later than 15 business days of 
discovery of the Breach. 

b. Patient notice method: Notice to the patient(s) shall be provided in writing 
by USPS First Class or certified mail or by email if the individual has 
indicated a preference to receive email communications. For individuals 
for whom NIHD has insufficient contact information, refer to the U.S.  
Code of Federal Regulations, 45 C.F.R. 164.404, or the Privacy Officer 
should consult NIHD Legal Counsel. 

c. Notice to the patient(s) shall contain a form titled “Notice of Data 
Breach,”:   

a. The security breach notification shall be written in plain language, 
shall be titled “Notice of Data Breach,” and  

b. Shall present the information under the following headings:  
i. “What Happened,”  

ii. “What Information Was Involved,”  
iii. “What We Are Doing,”  
iv. “What You Can Do,” and  
v. “For More Information.”  

c. Additional information may be provided as a supplement to the 
notice.  

d. NIHD shall offer paid credit monitoring to patient(s) whose social security 
number, credit card information, or other significant financial information 
has been breached. The offer shall be for no less than 12 consecutive 
months of credit monitoring service.  

e. California Department of Public Health (CDPH) notification must be 
made without unreasonable delay and in no event later than 15 business 
days of discovery of the Breach. Notice to the CDPH shall be provided 
online through the California Healthcare Event and Reporting Tool 
(CalHEART). CDPH notification shall include all fields on the 
CalHEART notification tool. 

f. Media Notification:  If a Breach of Unsecured PHI involves the PHI of 
more than 500 residents of a state, notification must be made to a 
prominent media outlet without unreasonable delay and in no event later 
than 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach. The Privacy Officer 

25



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
MEDICAL RECORDS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Privacy Officer Effective Date: 4-26-2018 
 

 
shall consult with NIHD Legal Counsel for consultation prior to 
publication of any Media Notification. 

g. Notification to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services’ 
Secretary (“Secretary”):  If a Breach of Unsecured PHI involves the PHI 
of 500 or more individuals, notification must be made to the Secretary. 
Such notification shall be made at the same time individual notification is 
provided.  In addition, notification of Breaches of individual PHI or 
Breaches of less than 500 individuals shall be made to the Secretary no 
later than 60 calendar days after the end of each calendar year.  Nothing 
herein prevents the Privacy Officer of notifying the Secretary at the same 
time notification is made to CDPH.  

 
E. HIPAA Accountings of Disclosures 

 
The Privacy Officer or designee shall determine whether unauthorized activity 
is subject to inclusion in disclosures which must be tracked in order to comply 
with HIPAA accountings and disclosures requirements.  
 

F. Breaches Involving Business Associates 
 
In the event NIHD is notified of unauthorized activity by an NIHD HIPAA 
Business Associate, the Privacy Officer will investigate and assess the 
potential Breach in accordance with the Business Associate Agreement. The 
NIHD Privacy Officer or designee will coordinate with appropriate 
representatives of the Business Associate in order to ensure that NIHD 
receives all relevant and necessary information and documentation, and in 
accordance with the terms of the applicable Business Associate Agreement. 
 

G.  Post-Investigation Follow-up 
1. The Compliance Department will work with Legal Counsel, Information 

Technology Services, Human Resources, Risk Management and any other 
department as necessary to mitigate any harmful effects of any breach that 
are known to NIHD. 

2. The Compliance Department shall document and track a plan of action, if 
any, including Sanctions, as appropriate. 

 
 

REFERENCES: 
1. 42 U.S.C. Section 17932 
2. 45 CFR 164.400 

Comment [e1]: Business or calendar? 

26



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
MEDICAL RECORDS 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Privacy Officer Effective Date: 4-26-2018 
 

 
3. California Civil Code Section 1798.82 
4. California Health and Safety Code Section 1280.15 
5. California Civil Code Section 56.05 

 
Approval Date 
Compliance and Business Ethics Committee  
Board of Directors  
Last Board review  
 
Responsibility for review and maintenance: Privacy Officer 
Index Listings:  Privacy, Breach, PHI 
Developed: 3-5-14 
Revised: 3/30/2018 
Reviewed: 12/16/15 
 
 

27



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 
Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 1, 2018 
 

 
PURPOSE:  Establishes requirements for auditing access to confidential information 
including protected health information in accordance with Northern Inyo Healthcare 
District (NIHD) policy and state and federal regulations. 
 
Definitions: 
 
Workforce:  Persons whose conduct, in the performance of their work for NIHD, is 
under the direct control of NIHD or have an executed agreement with NIHD, whether or 
not NIHD pays them. The Workforce includes employees, NIHD contracted and 
subcontracted staff, NIHD clinically privileged Physicians and Allied Health 
Professionals (AHPs), and other NIHD health care providers involved in the provision of 
care of NIHD’s patients. 
 
Confidential Information - protected health information (confidential medical 
information), workforce and employee health information, and proprietary information 
related to providers, financial data, trade secrets, business information, information 
protected by law and any other information pertaining to NIHD unless specifically 
designated as not confidential. Proprietary information is generally confidential 
information that is developed by the District as part of its business and operations. Such 
information may include, but is not limited to, the business, financial, marketing, and 
contract arrangements associated with District services and products. It also may include 
computer access passwords, procedures used in producing computer or data processing 
records, Personnel and medical records, and payroll data. Other proprietary information 
may include management know-how and processes; District business and product plans 
with outside vendors; a variety of internal databases, and copyrighted material, such as 
software. (Information published by governmental agencies or the NIHD Board of 
Directors on public sites is not considered confidential information in the form in which it 
is supplied and published. NIHD is governed by and complies with all freedom of 
information laws, such as the California Public Records Act and the Freedom of 
Information Act.) 
 
Covered Entity – (for the purpose of this policy) a healthcare provider, a health plan, or 
a healthcare clearinghouse who transmits any health information in electronic form. 
 
Minimum Necessary - covered entity must make reasonable efforts to limit the use, 
disclosure, and/or request for protected health information, and other confidential 
information to the minimum necessary (lowest amount) to accomplish the intended 
purpose of the use, disclosure, or request. 
 
Need-to-Know - access to only the data he or she needs to perform a particular function 
(role based access). 

28



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 
Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 1, 2018 
 

 
 
Protected Health Information (PHI) - individually identifiable health information that 
is transmitted or maintained in any form or medium, including electronic PHI. 
 
Electronic Protected Health Information or ePHI: Is PHI that is transmitted by 
electronic media or is maintained in electronic media. For example, ePHI includes all 
data that may be transmitted over the Internet, or stored on a computer, a CD, a disk, 
magnetic tape, jump drive (USB) or other media. 
 
Breach - the unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI and/or 
confidential information which compromises the security or privacy of the PHI or other 
confidential information. 
 
POLICY:  
Access to information systems is granted on a need-to-know basis and is based on one’s 
role with NIHD.  
 
Audits will be performed which evaluate whether information accessed was based on 
“minimum necessary” and “need-to-know” principles and standards and appropriate 
corrective action is taken as applicable. 
 
AUDIT TYPES:  
 

1. Routine Audits – Routine audits can include but are not limited to: 
 

Audit Description 
Same Last Name Workforce who access the record of a patient with the 

same last name  
Same Department Workforce who access the record of a co-worker who 

works in the same department 
Workforce Hospital 
Admission  

When a Northern Inyo Healthcare District  employee is 
admitted to the hospital as a patient 

Confidential Document Workforce who access “confidential” documents 
New Workforce Member All access made by new workforce members are audited 

prior to the end of their 90 day introductory period 
High Profile Individual The patient is a newsworthy individual 

 
 

2. Audits for Specific Cause – A request to audit for cause may come from various 
sources including but not limited to: 

a. Administration 

29



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 
Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 1, 2018 
 

 
b. Human Resources 
c. Department Director/Manager 
d. Board of Directors 
e. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement (QAPI) professionals 
f. Security Officer 
g. Patient or representative 
h. Community member  

 
 

Audits for specific cause are conducted in all systems applicable to services provided 
at NIHD.  
 
 
Causes or reasons for specific audits include but are not limited to: 

 
Audit Description 

Internal Concern Concern is expressed by a co-worker, Administration, 
Department Manager, Security Officer or other user  

Patient Complaint Patients request an audit of access to their medical 
record  

Employee Family Member 
Admission 

When an workforce member’s family member is 
admitted as a patient 

Restricted Information 
Patients 

Users who access a patient’s record who requests 
restricted access 

Follow-Up Workforce who have been subject to corrective action(s) 
for accessing records inappropriately 

Disciplined Workforce Workforce who have been disciplined for accessing 
records inappropriately 

 
3. Random Audits – Random audits may be performed on clinical systems and may 

be done to determine clean-up of inactive users. 
 
Audits Investigated and Evaluated  
 

1. The Compliance Department will review the audit results for potential breaches of 
patient privacy based and confidential information on “minimum necessary” and 
“need-to-know” principles. When questionable access is discovered on the audit 
report: 

 
a. A member of the Compliance Department will meet with the workforce 

member requesting information and an explanation for accessing the 

30



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 
Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 1, 2018 
 

 
patient or other information. For workforce members covered by a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), any meeting will conform to the 
MOU’s process. If further information is required based on the 
information received, meetings with additional workforce may occur. 
Follow up with any findings will be done with relevant workforce 
member(s). 

 
b. If the audit findings reveal, as determined by the Compliance/Privacy 

Officer, activity that appears to constitute a breach of confidentiality, audit 
and investigation results for disciplinary determination will be reported to, 
at a minimum, the following:  

 
i. Human Resources and/or the workforce members’ department 

manager/supervisor. 
ii. State and/or Federal agencies, in accordance with current law. 

iii. For each breach, the department manager/supervisor shall follow 
up with appropriate corrective action(s) as applicable to each 
finding and report such actions taken to the Compliance 
Department. 

iv. Department manager/supervisor shall submit copies of all 
documents for workforce corrective action(s) to the Compliance 
Department and the Human Resources department. 

 
Audit Record Disposition and Retention 
 

1. Audit reports are confidential documents. Copies of audit reports will be shared 
internally with Administration and management as necessary, and disclosed as 
required by law or for other business operations.  
 

2. Audit for specific cause outcomes may be communicated to the requestor via mail 
or telephone, as determined by the Compliance/Privacy Officer. 
 

3. Audit results will be retained according to state and federal regulations.  
 
 

Availability and Retention of Documents 
 

1. Audit documents will be made available to appropriate workforce members, as 
needed for review, discussion, and appropriate corrective action per NIHD policy 
and any applicable MOU. 

31



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
Title: Auditing of Workforce Access to Confidential Information 
Scope: District Wide Manual: Compliance 
Source: Compliance Officer Effective Date: April 1, 2018 
 

 
2. Audit documents will be made available to state and federal investigators upon 

request. 
3. Audit documentation shall be maintained for no less than three (3) years. 
4. Policy documents will be retained for no less than six (6) years from either the 

creation date or the last effective date, whichever is longer. 
 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. 45 CFR Part 164.308(a)(8) – Administrative Safeguards 
2. 45 CFR Part 164.312 (a)(1) – Technical Safeguards 
3. 45 CFR Part 164.308(a)(1)(ii)(D) – Administrative Safeguards 
4. 45 CFR Part 164.312(b)– Administrative Safeguards 
5. 45 CFR Part 164.316 – Policies and procedures and documentation requirements 
6. TJC Standard IM.01.01.01 
7. TJC Standard IM.02.01.01 
8. TJC Standard IM.02.01.03 
9. TJC Standard PI.03.01.01 

 
Committee Approval Date 
Compliance Committee 1/31/2018 
Administration  
Board of Directors  
 
Developed: 12/10/2013 KH 
Revised: 9/1/2017, 3/29/2018PD 
Reviewed: 12/16/15 
Supersedes: 
 

32



 

 
Medical Staff Services 

 

Dev. 2/17  

 

Department: Medical Staff Administration 

Pillars of Excellence: FY July 1, 2017-June 30, 2018 (rolling quarter) 

                 

   Apr-Jun 
2017 

Jul-Sep 
2017 

Oct-Dec 
2017 

Jan-Mar 
2018 

 

Indicator Baseline Goal Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 YTD 

Service 

1. Customer satisfaction  

a. Average Credentialing TAT (from 
receipt of complete application) 

1 day <21 days 14 d 9 d 8 d 16 d 12 d 

b. Average Privileging TAT (from 
receipt of complete application) 

17 days <60 days 30 d 18 d 22 d 27 d 27 d 

c. Percent on-time start 50% 100% 100% 92% 92% 100% 96% 

2. Application times  

a. Average time for any application 
materials to be returned 

23 days <14 days 29 d 11 d 18 d 19 d 19 d 

b. Average time for complete 
application to be returned 

64 days <45 days 48 d 36 d 38 d 32 d 37 d 

Quality 

1. Credentialing/Privileging  

a. Percent processed within time 
frame specified in bylaws 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

b. Percent of applicants granted 
temporary/expedited privileges 

50% <50% 13% 58% 33% 33% 36% 

People 

1. Active Staff 38 N/A 39 39 41 41  

2. All Medical Staff Members and Allied 
Health Professionals 

83 N/A 92 82 88 96  

3. Locums/Temporary Staff 1 N/A 3 9 5 5  

Finance 

1. Total applications processed  3 N/A 8 12 12 24 56 

2. Number of locum tenens 
applications  

1 N/A 3 6 5 4 18 

3. Number of applications 
abandoned/discontinued 

1 N/A 5 1 3 1 10 

 

 

 

 

LEGEND 

 Exceeds/far exceeds goal 

 Meets goal 

 Does not meet goal 

 Far from meeting goal 

33



 

 
Medical Staff Services 

 

Dev. 2/17  

 

FY 2017-2018 

Q3: January – March 2018 

 

Narrative Notes: 

 

The Medical Staff Office has seen a marked increase in the number of applications processed this quarter (doubled over 

the last quarter and approximately eight times the average numbers seen in 2015-2016), primarily due to NIHD’s 

expansion of specialist services and the transition to a new radiology services contract.  It is anticipated the number of 

applications will decrease next quarter, although the partnership with Adventist Health will likely keep an elevated 

number of applications until the program is fully established. 

 

The increased workload caused the Medical Staff Office credentialing and verification process to double in time from 8 

days to 16 days.  However, the time to privilege an applicant did not exceed 30 days, which we consider to be a high 

customer satisfier. 

 

Dianne Picken, M.S. 

Medical Staff Support Manager 

3/16/2018 

34



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Attendance At Meetings 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
PURPOSE: Establish policy for Board of Directors (BOD) meeting attendance. 
 
POLICY: 

1.  Directors are expected to the extent reasonable, to make good faith efforts to schedule 
vacation, business and personal commitments at time that with not conflict with the 
schedule of regular Board meetings. 

2. It is recognized the timing of business and family commitments, since they involve 
addition people and outside factors, cannot always be controlled. 

 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Notwithstanding any other provision of law the term of any member of the BOD shall 
expire if they are absent from three consecutive regular Board meetings, or from three of 
any five consecutive meetings of the Board and the Board by resolution declares a 
vacancy exists. 

2. As set forth in the Ralph M. Brown Act in CA Government Code Section 54953, a 
Director may attend a meeting by teleconference.   

 
REFERENCES: 

1. CA Health and Safety Code Section 32100.2 
2. Ralph M. Brown Act in CA Government Code Section 54953 

 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1.  
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
  
  
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  
 
Developed: March 31, 2018 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supersedes:  
Index Listings: 
 
 

35



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors Meetings 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 
PURPOSE:  Establish procedures for Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board of 
Directors’ (BOD) meetings. 
 
POLICY: 

1. All meetings of the NIHD BOD shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph Brown 
Act, Government Code 54950 et seq. and such additional requirements as set forth in any 
other BOD Policy and Procedures.   

 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Meetings of the BOD shall be held at the NIHD Board Room located at 2957 Birch St.  
Bishop CA 93514 except as otherwise set forth in agenda notices. 

2. Regular meetings shall be held the third Wednesday of each calendar month unless it is 
deemed necessary to cancel or hold the regular monthly meeting on a different date.  

3. As the BOD encourages public participation at its meetings (whether regular, special, 
study sessions, or emergency) and to facilitate communications, the BOD will ensure 
agendas are posted in the required timeframe on the NIHD website in addition to other 
legal requirements.  The place, date and time of the meeting shall be indicated on the 
agenda. 

4. Each agenda shall include a time for public comment on non-agenda items as well as 
comment opportunity on each action agenda item when called. 

5. If any Director is attending the meeting by teleconference, the location shall be posted 
and accessible to the public. 

6. The President of the NIHD BOD shall preside at all board meetings at which they are 
present.  In absence of the President, the Vice President shall perform the President’s 
duties and have the President’s rights.  If both the President and Vice President are absent 
then the Secretary shall perform the President’s duties and have the President’s rights. 

7. The President shall call the meeting to order at the time set on the agenda or as soon as a 
quorum is present. 

8. A majority (3 of 5 members) shall constitute a quorum for transaction of business.  An 
abstention does not count as a vote for or against. 

9. If no directors are present the clerk of the board shall adjourn the meeting to a future date 
and time.  A notice of the adjournment including the future date and time of the 
adjourned meeting shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where 
the meeting was held. 

10. If the date of the adjourned meeting is within five (5) days of the original meeting, no 
new agenda need be posted if no additional agenda items are added.  If the date of the 
adjourned meeting is more than five (5) days a new agenda must be posted. 

11. The President of the BOD, as necessary to conduct business of the District, can call 
special meetings or study sessions. 

12. Ordinarily, items on the agenda will be considered in the order set forth in the agenda.  
However, the President may alter the order of items on the agenda, as the President 
deems necessary for the good of the meeting. 

13. The President may declare a short recess during any meeting. 

36



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors Meetings 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 2 of 2 

14. The President shall have the same rights as the other Board members in voting, 
introducing or seconding motions and resolutions as well as participating in discussions. 

15. No action may be taken by secret ballot.  (Government Code Section 54953(c).) 
16. All votes taken during a teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call.  (Government   

Code Section 54953(b)(2).) 
17. Directors shall observe all applicable conflict of interest rules.  If a financial interest is 

determined by any board member they must abstain from any vote that may be in 
violation of Government Code 1090.  The director shall leave the meeting room during 
any discussion and the vote and shall state the reason for abstention. 

18. The annual organizational meeting shall be the regular BOD meeting held in December 
or at an earlier meeting if called.  At that meeting officers shall be elected.5 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. Ralph Brown Act, Government Code 54950 et seq. 
2. Government Code Section 54953(c) 
3. Government Code Section 54953(b)(2) 
4. Government Code 1090 

 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1.  
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
  
  
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  
 
Developed: March 31, 2018 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supersedes:  
Index Listings: 
 
 

37



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Basis of Authority: Role of Directors 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 
PURPOSE: Establish governing Board of Directors (BOD) best practices and Director’s roles. 
 
POLICY: 

1.  A Director of Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) is to be conscientious and 
concerned with all aspects of the district including its financial health, community needs, 
quality of care, employee relations, and compliance with the law. 

2. A Director must act in good faith, with the highest ethical standards, in the best interest of 
the organization. 

3. A Director must act in a manner consistent with the Board’s stated mission and bylaws 
and conduct their activities within the powers conferred upon them by federal, state, and 
local regulations. 

4. A Director must work to ensure the District Missions, Vision, and Values are the center 
of decision-making.  

 
PROCEDURE: 

1. Apart from their normal function as part of the NIHD BOD a Director has no individual 
authority to commit the District to any policy, act, or expenditure, unless the BOD takes 
specific action to grant such authority as to a given matter. 

2. The NIHD BOD primary responsibility is the formulation and evaluation of policy.  
Directors are responsible for monitoring the District’s progress in attaining goals and 
objectives, while pursuing its mission. 

3. Routine matters concerning the operations aspects of the District are to be delegated to 
the Chief Executive Officer of NIHD.   

4. While the BOD is responsible for monitoring hospital management activities, a Board 
member shall not use inappropriate involvement in day-to-day management or interfere 
with senior management duties. 

5. A Director shall not compete with the district or act on behalf of its competitors; not 
derive profits from inside information; not disclose confidential information; not accept 
improper payments or gratuities, and beware of potential conflicts of interest. 

6. A Director has protection from organization and personal liability when their duties are 
exercised in good faith and legally using sound and informed judgment.  Having all the 
information available to make a decision will not only increase the likelihood of making 
the right decision, but will go a long way to legally protect the BOD if they make a 
wrong one. 

7.  A Director is expected to become and stay current on District affairs and projects and 
become familiar with District financial reports and carefully review all materials in 
advance of Board Meetings. 

8. A Director is expected to become familiar with the Ralph M. Brown Act and at all times 
conform to its policies and regulations.   

 
REFERENCES: 

1.  
 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

38



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Basis of Authority: Role of Directors 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 2 of 2 

1.  
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
  
  
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  
 
Developed: March 31, 2018 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supersedes:  
Index Listings: 
 
 

39



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Reimbursement Of Expenses 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 
PURPOSE: Procedure for reimbursement of qualified expenses to NIHD Board of Directors. 
 
POLICY: 

1. If requested, the District shall reimburse NIHD Directors for necessary travel and 
incidental expenses incurred in the performance of official duties as Directors, subject to 
requirements of the NIHD Policy and Procedures and the law.  

 
PROCEDURE: 

1. The following types of occurrences qualify for reimbursement if attended in the 
performance of official duties as NIHD Director.       
 a.  Training, workshops, seminars and conferences.     
 b.  Educational workshops, seminars, and conference.   
 c.  Meetings of local governmental entities and bodies.   
 d.  Meetings of community or civic groups or other state or national   
 organizations.         
 e.  Any other activity approved by the BOD in advance of attendance.  

2. Reimbursement for travel, meals, lodging, and other expenses shall be in accordance with 
the NIHD Travel and Reimbursement Policy.  

3. Request for reimbursement shall include receipts for all expenses for which 
reimbursement is requested.    

 
REFERENCES: 

1.  
 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1. NIHD Travel and Reimbursement Policy and Procedure 
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
  
  
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  
 
Developed: March 26, 2018 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supersedes:  
Index Listings: 
 
 

40



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Election Procedures and Related Conduct 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 1 of 2 

 
PURPOSE: Establish procedures for adherence to election process and conduct relating to 
elections as defined by state and county law for the five elected members of the Board of 
Directors.   
 
POLICY:  

1. Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board of Directors (BOD) shall consist of 
five elected members.   

2. The District is divided into five (5) separate zones with each member living in and 
representing one of the zones. 

3. An elected term shall be of four years duration. 
4. There is no limit to the number of terms a member may serve.   

 
PROCEDURE: 

1. The District shall hold its general election consolidated with the statewide general 
election held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November in even numbered 
years. 

2. The candidate receiving the most votes in each zone, even if not a majority shall be 
elected.   

3. Unless as a result of a vacancy, all BOD terms shall be four (4) years. 
4. Those Board members whose term in office has concluded shall continue on the board 

until the successor has qualified or the first Thursday in December following the election 
which ever is later. 

5. All registered voters within each zone are qualified to run for office in their zone of 
residence. 

6. Prospective Board members must be at least eighteen (18) years of age and District 
residents. 

7. Interested candidates for the BOD are directed to the Inyo County Clerk/Recorder’s 
office for information regarding the rules and regulations related to candidacy for a Board 
seat. 

8. Law sets the candidate filing period for Statewide General Elections. 
9. All candidates must file a Form 700 Statement of Economic Interest. 
10. The candidate pays for the cost of the candidate’s policy statement. 
11. Directors shall not use any District resources, for example, photocopiers or paper 

supplies, or make requests of staff to produce or disseminate any partisan campaign 
material to be used in support of or in opposition to any candidate for public office or any 
ballot measure. 

12. By law, NIHD may not use public funds or resources to advocate for or against any ballot 
measure or candidate. 

13. It is permissible to use public funds for the dissemination of impartial educational 
information, to make a fair presentation of the facts to aid voters in making an informed 
decision. 

14. It is permissible for the BOD to go on record at a public meeting in favor of or opposed 
to a particular ballot measure. 

41



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Election Procedures and Related Conduct 
Scope: Board of Directors Manual: BOD Policy Manual - Administration 
Source: Board of Directors Effective Date: 
 

Page 2 of 2 

15. Directors shall not hand out any partisan campaign material supporting or opposing any 
candidate for public office or any ballot measure while the public Board meeting is in 
progress. 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. Inyo County Clerk/Recorder 
 
 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1.  
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
  
  
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  
 
Developed: March 31, 2018 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supersedes:  
Index Listings: 
 
 

42



1 
 

   
 

2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring-April 2018 
 

1. QAPI continues to receive and monitor data related to the previous CMS Validation Survey, including but not limited to, 
restraints, dietary process measures, case management, pain re-assessment, as follows: 
 
a. Advance Directives Monitoring.  

 

         
 

b. Positive Lab Cultures are being routed to Infection Prevention and each positive is being investigated as to source.  
Monitoring has been ongoing and reported through Infection Control Committee.  QAPI receives data.   

 
c. Safe Food cooling monitored for compliance with approved policy and procedure.  100% compliance since May 6, 

2013. 
 
d. Dietary hand washing logs have been reported and are at 100% compliance since May 6, 2013. 

 
 

e. QAPI continues to monitor dietary referrals and the number of consults completed within 24 hours.  
 
 

43



2 
 

 
 

 
 

f. Care plans reviewed by Case Management and interventions made to produce care plans. Progress has been made in  
developing individualized care plans. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

44



3 
 

 
 
 

g. Fire drill date, times, attendance and outcomes, smoke detector tests, and fire extinguisher test grids have been 
approved.  All fire drills were complete and compliant from May 6, through present.  

 
 

h. Pain Re-Assessment. NIH conducts pain re-assessment after administering pain medications and uses a 1-10 scale.  
 
 

 
    
 
 
 
   

45



4 
 

 

 
   Note: Due to small sample sizes in the ICU, results should be interpreted with caution for this unit. 
 
 
 
  
 

46



5 
 

 
 
 
 
Table 6. Restraint chart monitoring for legal orders. 

 Aug 
2017 

Sept 
2017 

Oct 
2017 

Nov 
2017 

Dec 
2017 

Jan 
2018 

Feb* 
2018 

Mar 
2018 

Goal 

Restraint verbal/written 
order obtained within 1 hour 
of restraints 

3/3 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

 2/2 
(100%) 
 

100% 

Physician signed order 
within 24 hours 

2/3 
(66%) 

1/2 
(50%) 

2/3 
(66%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

2/3 
(66%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 2/2 
(100%) 

100% 

Physician Initial Order 
Completed (all areas 
completed and 
form/time/date noted/signed 
by MD and RN) 

1/3 
(33%) 

0/2 
(0%) 

2/3 
(66%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

1/3 
(33%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 1/2 
(50%) 

100% 

Physician Re-Order 
Completed (all areas 
completed and form 
time/date/noted/signed by 
MD and RN) 

2/8 
(25%) 

0/2 
(0%) 

1/2 
(50%) 

N/A 2/6 
(33%) 

N/A  3/6 
(50%) 

100% 

Orders are for 24 hours 11/11 
(100%) 

4/4 
(100%) 

5/5 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

9/9 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

 8/8 
(100%) 

100% 

Is this a PRN (as needed) 
Order 

0/11 
(0%) 

0/4 
(0%) 

0/5 
(0%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

0/9 
(0%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 0/8 
(0%) 

0% 

 
            *indicates no patients in restraints for this time period 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



 

 

 
 

 
TO:  NIHD Board of Directors 
FROM: Richard Meredick, MD, Chief of Medical Staff 
DATE:  April 3, 2018 
RE:  Medical Executive Committee Report 
 
The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the 
Committee agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors: 
 

A. Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Order Sets (action items) 
1. Bite Guidelines, Animals  
2. DI – Timely Performance Standards 
3. Discharge Instructions Emergency Department 
4. Pediatric Order Verification Overnight  
5. Radiology Critical Indicators for Chart Review Policy 
6. Safely Surrendered Baby Policy and Procedure 
7. Scope of Service for the Emergency Department 
8. Standards of Care for the Emergency Department 

 
B. Annual Review (action items) 

1. Emergency Room Service Critical Indicators  
 

C. Medical Staff Appointments/Privileges (action items) 
1. Gabriel Overholtzer, DDS (dentistry) – Provisional Active Staff (limited license 

practitioner) 
2. Kinsey R. Pillsbury, MD (radiology) – Consulting Staff 

 
 

 

NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California  93514 

          Medical Staff Office 
    (760) 873-2136     voice 
     (760) 873-2130     fax 
      

65



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Bite Guidelines, Animals 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual:  Emergency Department 
Source: Emergency Dept. Manager Effective Date: 04/1992 
 
PURPOSE: 
The primary role of the Emergency Department in preventing rabies is in accurately reporting to the County 
Health Department and Animal Control and to provide proper acute wound management. 
 
POLICY AND TREATMENT GUIDELINES: 
 
A. All “at risk” wounds should be thoroughly cleansed with antibacterial soap and water, sutured by physician  
     as needed and covered with dressing.  
B. Tetanus immunization should be updated as needed.   
C. All animal bites, including family’s own pet must be reported to: 
 
 1. Inyo County Animal Control 
   a.  Monday- Friday 8 AM- 5 PM             (760) 873-7852 
                        b. Weekends and after 5 PM                 
          -Inyo County Sheriff                   (760) 873-7887 
 2. Mono County Sheriff’s Department            (760) 932- 7549 
 
 
D.  If local health officials cannot provide information, call 
 1.  California State Department of Health       (415) 540-2000   
  
 E . Rabies Prophylaxis: 
 

  1. Animal not able to be captured: 
a.   If high risk species (raccoon, bat, skunk, coyotes, etc.)  
  

• Treat with Rabies Immune Globulin (RIG) per American Hospital Formulary Service (AHFS) 
recommendations. 
    - Dose infiltrated into wound should be performed by physician. 

• Also treat with Human Diploid Cell Rabies Vaccine (HDCV) per AHFS recommendations.  
• Vaccine is available in the NIHD pharmacy. 
• Antibiotics as needed per emergency room physician    
• Advise to follow up at Inyo County Health Department. 

 
                   b. Low risk species (dog, cat, rabbit, rodents, birds)  
 

• Consult with local animal control officer as to presence of rabies in species.   
• Consider treatment if animal attack was bizarre, abnormal, or totally unprovoked. 

 
     2.    If animal captured:  (Follow treatment according to Animal Control guidelines ) 
   a.  If  high risk animal or abnormal behavior - start treatment unless animal test is done immediately. 

(This normally takes 2-3 days).  
 

• If positive, start above treatment protocols. 
• If negative, do not treat. 

66



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Bite Guidelines, Animals 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual:  Emergency Department 
Source: Emergency Dept. Manager Effective Date: 04/1992 
 
 
  
DOCUMENTATION: 
1. Note on medical record when Animal Control was contacted. 
2. Document discharge instructions on wound care and any needed follow up with Animal Control and primary 
physician. 
 
REFERENCE: 
Inyo County Animal Control Rabies Policy 
 
 
CROSSREFERENCE:  
 
 
Approval Date 
CCOC 1/29/18 
Emergency Services Committee 3/14/18 
Medical Executive Committee 4/3/18 
Board of Directors  
Last Board of Director Review 6/21/17 
 
Developed: 4/92 
Revised:  3/98, 03/09/04 MR 
Reviewed: 08/2010as; 09/2012as, 1/18  gr 

 
 

 

67



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: DI - Timely Performance Standards – Hospital Based Patients 
Scope:  Manual: Diagnostic Imaging 
Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic 
Services (DI & Lab) 

Effective Date: 

 
 
PURPOSE:  To define terms and time frames for the timely performance of  Diagnostic Imaging 
Department procedures  
 
DEFINITIONS:  
Timely performance will be measured for hospital based patients in three separate increments as defined 
below: 

• Tech time – The time interval between the an order being placed for an exam and the technologist 
completing the examination 

• Radiologists time – The time interval between the technologist submitting the exam for interpretation 
and the radiologists providing a final signed report to ordering physician 

• Total Turnaround Time – The time interval between the order being placed for an exam and a final 
signed report being available to the referring physician. 

 
 
 
POLICY: 

1. It is the goal of the Diagnostic Imaging department to meet the following guidelines for exams or procedures 
ordered as stat exams.   

1. Tech time - < 60 minutes 
2. Radiologists time (could be preliminary report for stat exams) - < 60 minutes  
3. Total Turnaround time - <120 minutes 

2. It is the goal of the Diagnostic Imaging department to meet the following guidelines for exams or procedures 
ordered as ASAP exams. 

1. Tech time - < 180 minutes 
2. Radiologists time (could be preliminary report for ASAP exams)- < 120 minutes 
3. Total Turnaround time - <300 minutes 

3. It is the goal of the Diagnostic Imaging department to meet the following guidelines for exams or procedures 
ordered as routine exams. 

1. Tech time - < 12 hours 
2. Radiologists time - < 12 hours 
3. Total Turnaround time - < 24 hours 

 
 
REFERENCES: 

1. ACR guidelines for timely completion of exams 
2. Joint Commission Standard PC.02.02.01 EP 17 

 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
1. Diagnostic Imaging – Patient Priority 
2. 
3. 
 
 
 
 

 1 
68



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: DI - Timely Performance Standards – Hospital Based Patients 
Scope: Manual: Diagnostic Imaging 
Source: Operations - Director of Diagnostic 
Services (DI & Lab) 

Effective Date: 

Approval Date 
CCOC 03-26-18 
Radiology Services Committee 03-07-18 
Medical Executive Committee 
Administration 
Board of Directors 
Developed: 3-2018 
Reviewed: 
Revised: 
Supercedes: 

Index Listings: 

2 

04-03-18

69



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Discharge Instructions Emergency Department 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual:  Emergency Dept 
Source: Emergency Dept Nurse Manager Effective Date: 
 
PURPOSE:  
To ensure that all patients discharged from the Emergency Department (ED) have thorough, appropriate and consistent discharge 
instruction and directions for follow-up care.  
 
POLICY:  
Discharge instructions are mandatory for all patients discharged from the Emergency Department. These instructions will be in 
a typed written format utilizing the Computerized Discharge Instruction System.  The generated discharge instructions will be 
verbally reviewed with the patient or responsible party and the patient or responsible party will sign a copy of same indicating 
that the nurse has reviewed the instructions with them and that any questions have been answered. The patient will be referred 
to their own or other physician as appropriate for follow-up care, or may return to the Emergency Department if needed.  
 
All topics will be reviewed and approved by the Chief of Emergency Services or Designee before being entered into the  
Discharge Instruction Computer database. 
 
EQUIPMENT:    
Discharge instructions can be generated from the computers located in the Main Room of the Emergency Department, the ER 
Office, and in the ER Nurse Managers Office using the Computerized Discharge Instructions System. 
 
PROCEDURE: 

1. The ED Physician will write his/her discharge instructions in the template, the first page of the ED chart, or in their 
dictated note. 

2. Discharge instructions for each patient will be generated from the Computerized Discharge Instructions Systems. 
3. database as directed by the Physician utilizing topics in Illnesses; Medications; Follow-Up; Activity Limitations; 

Devices, Equipment and Treatment; Diets; Dressings, Drains and Wound Care; Lifestyle and Environment; Procedures, 
Tests and Preps; and Health and Wellness Promotions. 

4. The instructions will be reviewed with the patient and/or responsible party by a Registered Nurse. All questions will be 
addressed and a signature will be obtained indicating that all questions have been answered. The original discharge 
instructions will be given to the patient, family or responsible party. The copy will become part of the Medical Record 
after being signed and timed by the Registered Nurse.  

5. Any special instructions such as School or Work Releases will be created if needed and a copy of same will be retained 
in the Medical Record.  

6. Discharge instructions can be printed in Spanish during the printing process. 
 
DOCUMENTATION: 
As well as signing the discharge instructions provided to the patient, a note will be made in the narrative record 
addressing the patient discharge.  
 
REFERENCES: 
      1.   Emergency Nurses Association. (2017). Safe Discharge From the Emergency Setting Position Statement.   

Retrieved from https://www.ena.org/docs/default-source/resource-library/practice-resources/position-
statements/safedischargefromed.pdf?sfvrsn=998ee45f_6 
 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
      1. Standards of Care in the Emergency Department 
 
Committee Approval   Date 
Clinical Consistency Committee  1/29/18 
Emergency Services Committee 3/14/18 
Medical Executive Committee 4/3/18 
Board of Directors   

70

https://www.ena.org/docs/default-source/resource-library/practice-resources/position-statements/safedischargefromed.pdf?sfvrsn=998ee45f_6
https://www.ena.org/docs/default-source/resource-library/practice-resources/position-statements/safedischargefromed.pdf?sfvrsn=998ee45f_6


NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Discharge Instructions Emergency Department 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual:  Emergency Dept 
Source: Emergency Dept Nurse Manager Effective Date: 
 
Last Board of Director review 6/21/17 
 
Developed:  
Reviewed:  12/15as 
Revised:  12/17gr 
Supersedes:  
Index Listings: 

71



Title: Pediatric Order Verification Overnight 
Scope: Emergency Room Department: Emergency Room 
Source: Interim Pharmacy Director Effective Date: 
 

PURPOSE: 

The intent of this policy is to minimize risk of dose related medication errors occurring for pediatric orders. 

POLICY: 

1. During the overnight shift (17:01 - 06:29), emergency room staff will be required to call the on-call pharmacist to 
verify pediatric (patient is <= 18 years old or <=36 kg)(1) medication orders. Due to max dosing restrictions on 
select drugs, this policy is not meant to replace clinical judgment on a clinician’s interpretation of a pediatric 
order. Pharmacists do not need to be called on the following oral medications: 

a. Ibuprofen 
b. Acetaminophen 
c. Diphenhydramine 
d. Amoxicillin 
e. Amoxicillin/Clavulanic acid 
f. Dexamethasone 
g. Prednisolone 
h. Ondansetron 
i. Azithromycin 
j. Cefdinir 
k. Cefixime 
l. Cephalexin 
m. Penicillin 
n. Sulfamethoxazole/Trimethoprim 
n.o. Albuterol nebulized solution* 

 
2. All pediatric medications orders in the electronic health record will be built to have a mg/kg ordering format 

except for albuterol nebulized solution. If further medications are deemed to be clinically inappropriate to have a 
mg/kg ordering format, the appropriate committees will review the medications in question. 

3. Only one concentration of a given liquid medication may be available in the Omnicell. 

References: 

1. Pediatric Definition. Accessed 3/27/18 
2. Meeting with Northern Inyo Associate Pediatric Department 3/13/2018. 
3. Paragon ordering system review Quarter 1, 2018. 

CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 

1. High alert medications policy and procedure. 

Approval Date 
ER MedicalEmergency Room Service Committees 03/14/18 
MEC 04/03/18 
Board of Directors  
Developed: 3/13/2018 

Reviewed: 
72

https://www.smchealth.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/233743255pediatrics_definitions.pdf


NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Radiology Critical Indicators for Chart Review 
Scope: Multi-departmental Department:  Medical Records, Medical Staff, 

Performance Improvement, Radiology 
Source: Director of Diagnostic Services Effective Date: 

Purpose: 
To identify critical indicators that will generate automatic review of medical charts for quality of care and 
deviation of standard of care assessment. 

Policy: 
Any patient or procedure with the following outcomes will be flagged for chart review in order to identify areas 
for process improvement. 

1. Death within 24 hours of  invasive procedure
2. Admission to ED within 24 hours of invasive procedure
3. Severe Contrast Reaction
4. Code blue within the DI department
5. Patient called back for having wrong procedure performed
6. Staff concerns with breach of protocol

Preliminary screening of the chart for review will be conducted by the Radiology Director. 

Radiology Director will discuss all cases with the Chief of Radiology. 

Chief of Radiology will review and determine cases to be reviewed at the Radiology Committee meeting.  

Following committee review, the committee may conclude: 
Care within accepted standard of care 
Care acceptable with questions 
Care unacceptable 

Action is then determined as follows: 
No action 
Changes in process/procedure recommended 
Discuss variance with physician 
Refer to another department/Executive Committee 
Other action as appropriate to situation 

Document review will be place in physician’s peer review file. 
Approval Date 
Radiology Committee 
Medical Executive Committee 
Administration 
Board of Directors 

Revised: 
Reviewed: 

1 

3/7/18
4/3/18

73



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Safely Surrendered Baby Policy and Procedure  
Scope: NIHD Department:  , Social Services 
Source: Emergency Dept. Manager Effective Date:  
 
PURPOSE: 
 
This intent of this policy is to meet the legal requirements of the Newborn Safe Surrender Law (Health and 
Safety Code1255.7). 
 
POLICY: 
 

1. The Emergency Department shall be designated to be responsible for accepting physical custody of a 
minor child who is 72 hours old or younger from a parent or individual who has lawful custody of the 
child and who surrenders the child.  

 
2. NIHD shall post a sign in the Emergency Department utilizing a statewide logo that has been adopted by 

the State Department of Social Services that notifies the public of the location where a minor child 72 
hours old or younger may be safely surrendered. 

 
3. A member of the ED Staff shall do the following: 

a. Place a coded, confidential ankle bracelet on the child. 
b. Provide, or make a good faith effort to provide, to the parent or other individual surrendering the 

child a copy of a unique, coded, confidential ankle bracelet identification in order to facilitate 
reclaiming the child. However, possession of the ankle bracelet identification, in and of itself, 
does not establish parentage or a right to custody of the child. 

c. Provide, or make a good faith effort to provide, to the parent or other individual surrendering the 
child a medical information questionnaire, which may be declined, voluntarily filled out and 
returned at the time the child is surrendered, or later filled out and mailed in an envelope 
provided for this purpose.  This medical information questionnaire shall not require any 
identifying information about the child or the parent or individual surrendering the child, other 
than the identification code provided in the ankle bracelet placed on the child.  Every 
questionnaire provided pursuant to a safe surrender shall begin with the following notice in no 
less than 12-point type: 

 
Notice: The baby you have brought in today may have serious medical needs in the future that we don’t know 
about today. Some illnesses, including cancer, are best treated when we know about family medical histories. In 
addition, sometimes relatives are needed for lifesaving treatments. To make sure this baby will have a healthy 
future, your assistance in completing this questionnaire fully is essential.  Thank You 
 

d. Ensure that a medical screening examination and any necessary medical care is provided to the 
surrendered child as soon as possible without requiring consent of the parent or other relative to 
provide that care to the minor child pursuant to a safe surrender. 

 
4. After the medical screening exam is complete and the newborn is determined to be stable, or is 

stabilized, the newborn will be placed in the Perinatal Department Nursery, for routine newborn care. 
 

5. A Nursing Supervisor shall be notified as soon as possible.  
 

6. The Nursing Supervisor shall notify Social Services. 
 

74



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Safely Surrendered Baby Policy and Procedure  
Scope: NIHD Department:  , Social Services 
Source: Emergency Dept. Manager Effective Date:  
 

7. Social Services or the Nursing Supervisor shall notify Child Protective Services of the safe surrender as 
soon as possible, but no later than 48 hours after the physical custody of a child has been accepted. 

 
8. Any medical information pertinent to the child's health, including, but not limited to, information 

obtained pursuant to the medical information questionnaire shall be provided to child protective services 
without obtaining a HIPAA release.  However, any personal identifying information that pertains to a 
parent or individual who surrenders a child shall be blacked out from any medical information provided 
to child protective services or the county agency providing child welfare services.  

 
9. Since child protective services will assume temporary custody of the child immediately on receipt of 

notice, NIHD employees will surrender physical custody of the child to the agency upon demand. 
 

10. Should the person who surrendered the newborn request that the hospital return the newborn to him/her 
before child protective services assumes custody of the child, then, NIHD personnel will either return 
the child to the parent or individual or contact the child protective agency if NIHD personnel know or 
reasonably suspect that the child has been the victim of child abuse or neglect.  The voluntary 
surrendering of a child is not in and of itself a sufficient basis for reporting child abuse or neglect.  The 
child will not be returned to the requesting person if the hospital has been notified that a dependency 
petition has been filed in juvenile court.  

 
11. The person requesting the return of the newborn must present positive identification or evidence that the 

requesting person is the person who surrendered the child. 
  
 
PROCEDURE: 
1. At the time of the presentation, attempt to verify the age of the newborn by physically examining the infant, 

specifically looking for presence of umbilical cord. 
 
2. When the newborn is surrendered to the Emergency Department staff they will immediately call the 

Perinatal Unit and the ED physician and notify them that they have a surrendered newborn and request their 
assistance.  

 
3. The Perinatal nurse will bring a radiant warmer and ID bands to the Emergency Department.  
 
4. The ED physician will perform a “medical screening examination”.  
 
5. Notify the Supervisor and Social Service Worker of the surrendered newborn. 
 
6. Place an identification bracelet on the infant’s wrist and ankle.    
 
7. Make a duplicate bracelet with identical numbers to give to the person surrendering the baby in case the 

person wants to reclaim the child at a later date.   
 

8. The identification band will contain the following information:  
 

a. The infant’s name or baby boy/girl Doe if no name. 
75



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Safely Surrendered Baby Policy and Procedure  
Scope: NIHD Department:  , Social Services 
Source: Emergency Dept. Manager Effective Date:  
 

b. Tag number  
c. Sex of infant  
d. Date and time of birth, or the admit date and time if birth data is unknown  

 
9. Ask the person surrendering the newborn to complete a family medical history questionnaire.  
 
10. Admit the newborn to the Perinatal Department Nursery. 
 
11. Notify the on-call pediatrician of the admission.  
 
12. The admitting nursery nurse will follow policy and procedure for Admit Newborn to Nursery. 
 
DOCUMENTATION: 

1. The confidential identification will be handled per medical records guidelines. 
2. The medical screening examination, treatment and transfer from the Emergency Department will be the 

usual documentation.   
3. Discharge documentation: Social Services obtain release of minor documentation, and CPS credentials.  
4. The nurse will chart according to "Surrendering to CPS Policy and Procedure. 

 
REFERENCES: 

1. http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/09-10/bill/asm/ab_1001-1050/ab_1048_bill_20100930_chaptered.pdf 
2. California Department of Social Services. (2006). Safely Surrendered Baby Law 

Retrieved from http://www.cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/Safely-Surrendered-Baby 
 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
      1.  Surrendering to CPS Policy and Procedure 
      2.  Admit Newborn to Nursery 

 
Initiated: 01/2001 
Reviewed: 2/15as 
Revised:  12/17gr 
Committee Approval   Date 
Clinical Consistency Committee  1/29/18 
Emergency Room Medical Care Committee 3/14/18 
Medical Executive Committee 4/3/18 
Board of Directors   
Last Board of Director review 6/21/17 
 
 

76

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/09-10/bill/asm/ab_1001-1050/ab_1048_bill_20100930_chaptered.pdf
http://www.cdss.ca.gov/inforesources/Safely-Surrendered-Baby


NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Scope of Service for the Emergency Department 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual: Emergency Dept 
Source: Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date: 6/30/16 
 
 

Purpose: 
      To offer emergency services to patients whose emergent medical needs can be met within the 
      capabilities of the hospital staff and facilities 
 

      Department Description:  
The Emergency Department (ED) is an 8-gurney department on the first floor of the hospital with 
separate ambulatory patient and ambulance entrances.  The department has a triage room, a 2-bed 
trauma room and 6 other treatment rooms.  One treatment room has been designed for OB/GYN.  The 
unit has two patient bathrooms, one with a shower.  There is also a decontamination shower with an 
entrance adjacent to the ambulance entrance.  There is also a door leading into the main ED.  Within the 
ED is a Radiology/Fluoroscopy room. 
 

Mission:  
Improving our communities one life at a time. One team. One Goal. Your Health. 
 

Vision:   
Northern Inyo Healthcare District will be known throughout the Eastern Sierra Region for providing 
high quality, comprehensive care in the most patient friendly way, both locally and in coordination with 
trusted regional partners. 
 

     Scope:   
The ED provides basic emergency services for patients of all ages on a 24 hour a day basis.  An ED physician 
will provide a medical screening exam on all patients, regardless of the ability to pay.  The ED Unit serves as 
a Base Station for Inyo County ambulances and directs pre-hospital care via the Base Station radio following 
appropriate protocols 
A dedicated triage nurse will triage all patients using the Emergency Severity Index ( ESI) 5-level triage 
system.  Following emergency assessment, diagnosis and treatment,  patients may be admitted to the hospital, 
transferred to a tertiary care center or discharged home.  
Patients transferring to a tertiary center are primarily transported by fixed wing or if appropriate by ground 
ambulance transport.  Transfer agreements are in place. 

 
    Staffing: 

The department is staffed with at least one physician experienced in emergency care  twenty four hours a day, 
seven days a week. 
Nursing staff includes: 
Emergency Department Manager 
Emergency Department Assistant Manager 
RNs 
Clerk/Technician 
Care is delivered under the direction of the ED Physician on duty and/or private MD in attendance if properly 
credentialed.   
The ED management is a joint function of the Medical Staff and Nursing Department and requires close  
cooperation with:  ED Physicians, Attending Medical staff, Nursing units staff, Respiratory Therapy, 
Lab, Pharmacy, EKG, Dietary and Radiology departments, Information Technology, and Admission 
Services.     

 1 
77



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Scope of Service for the Emergency Department 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual: Emergency Dept 
Source: Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date: 6/30/16 
 
    
Ages Serviced: 

The ED provides care across the life span 
Neonate:  birth -28 days 
Pediatrics: 28 days to <13 years 
Adult: 13 to 65 years 
Geriatric: > 65 years 

 
Quality Assurance/ Performance Improvement (QA/PI) : 

The ED Manager and Assistant Manager with the assistance of the QAPI representatives, integrates all 
nursing quality assurance/improvement functions on the unit, tracks identified problems, assist the ED 
nursing unit in the development and evaluation of effective performance improvement reviews, ensures 
appropriate follow up occurs, and prepares reports concerning ED nursing performance improvement 
programs for the Nurse Management Performance Improvement Committee. Activities of the 
Emergency Department Performance Improvement program will be documented in the minutes of the 
unit staff meetings and will be reported to the QA/PI department quarterly. 

 
Pillars of Excellence will be developed by:  

1. Involving all nursing staff members in problem identification, determination of process system 
failures, development of solutions and in promoting quality patient care. 

2. To periodically review and revise nursing indicators for the ED.  
3. To analyze the information collected through ongoing monitoring of patient care provided by nursing 

staff, establish priorities in targeting areas of patient care for review 
4. To identify problems or trends through analysis of the collected information.  
5. To provide recommendations for actions to resolve identified problems.  
6. To continue to follow up and review the results of action taken to determine if a problem has been 

resolved or if there is a need for further action.  
 

REFERENCES: 
Emergency Severity Index: A triage Tool for Emergency Department, Version 4 
 
CROSS REFERENCES: 
EMTALA Policy 
Evaluation a d Medical Screening of Patients Presenting to the Emergency Department 
Triage Protocol 
Standards of Care in the Emergency Department 
 
Approval Date 

NEC 2/21/18 
Emergency Room Service Committee 3/14/18 
Medical Executive Committee 4/3/18 
Board of Directors  
Last Board of Director review 6/21/17 
Developed:  
Reviewed: 02/2018 gr 
 2 

78



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Scope of Service for the Emergency Department 
Scope: Emergency Department Manual: Emergency Dept 
Source: Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date: 6/30/16 
 
Revised: 05/2016 as 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 3 
79



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standards of Care for the Emergency Department 
Scope:  Emergency Department (ED) Manual:  Emergency Department Standards of practice 
Source:  Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date:  09/05/06 
 
PURPOSE: 
To provide consistent standards for patients evaluated and treated in the Emergency Department. 
 
POLICY: 
Emergency nursing is provided using an interdisciplinary team approach based on the assessment of patient needs, 
problems, capabilities, limitations, interventions, and patient response. 

1. Patient expectations as defined will be met for each patient. 
2. Patient and family members are included in patient care planning and discharge planning. 
3. The patient age specific population served is: 

a. Newborn to geriatric 
 
PROCEDURE: 
The ED patient and or significant other can expect: 
A. On Admission to ED: 

1. Each patient will be assessed and triaged on arrival by an RN and will be categorized based on the Emergency 
Severity Index (ESI) Triage System Level 1-5. Categorization is based on degree of urgency and ED resource 
consumption. The triage level will be entered into electronic tracking board. 

2. The RN will determine English language proficiency, and document resources offered or provided for any patient  
 that rates their language proficiency lower than “very well.” 

3.   Baseline information shall be obtained by the Triage Nurse or Primary Nurse (if patient taken straight to 
      Treatment). 

a. Chief complaint  
b. brief history of present illness 
c. allergies 
d. medications 
e. past medical history  

       4. Other information obtained: 
a. Vital Signs: All patients presenting to the ED will have vital signs obtained and documented on the 
electronic health record (EHR) Vital Signs will include: 
Blood Pressure: 

Children under the age of 5 years require blood pressure determination when presenting with risk 
of fluid volume deficit, including sepsis, dehydration, polyuria, decreased urinary output or fluid 
intake, drug ingestion or overdose, trauma, alteration in neurological status, or per physician 
order. 
If any patient is hemodynamically compromised, as evident by hypotension or hypertension, 
reassess and document q15 minutes or more frequently as needed. 
If an automated blood pressure device is used, the print out of trends may be attached to the PCR 
or transcribed onto the PCR.  

Temperature: Temperatures will be obtained based on the following age-specific guidelines. 
 Newborn to 2 years- rectal or temporal                 

Above 2 years- rectal, temporal, tympanic or oral as condition warrants. 
  Heart Rate: Heart rate will be obtained based on the following age-specific criteria 
   Apical pulses will be obtained on all patients newborn to age 2. 

A peripheral pulse will be assessed for all patients over age 2, unless condition warrants an apical 
assessment (i.e. irregular rate, medications) 

  Respirations: 
Assess respirations and document rate, quality and signs of potential respiratory compromise. 

Pulse Oximetry: 
 Obtain SpO2 on all patients.  

80



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standards of Care for the Emergency Department 
Scope:  Emergency Department (ED) Manual:  Emergency Department Standards of practice 
Source:  Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date:  09/05/06 
 
   Age-specific oximetry probes will be utilized. 

 
Vital signs reassessment: 

Triage Level 1 or 2 patients will have vital signs reassessed a minimum of every 15 minutes or 
more frequently as needed, based on nursing judgment. 
Triage Level 3 patients will have vital signs reassessed every 1 (one) hour as needed, based on 
nursing judgment. 
Triage Level 4 or 5 patients will have vital signs reassessed every 2 hours, prior to discharge, or 
as needed based on nursing judgment. 

All patients will have vital signs taken at time of discharge, except: 
Patients with stable vital signs taken within 2 hours prior to discharge 
Patients returning for wound rechecks or suture removals 
Patients with simple strains or sprains 
Patients with simple lacerations 

  Skin Assessment-  
All patients will be evaluated for skin color, temperature and moisture. 

Pain- 
Pain will be assessed on all patients on admission and discharge with re-assessment as needed. 
Age-appropriate pain scales will be utilized. 
Alternate pain scales will be utilized for non-English speaking or sensory impaired patients. 
The pain scale utilized will be documented on the PCR. 

Weight- 
All patients age 14 and under will be weighed and the result documented in kg. 
All other patients will have a weight stated by the patient, estimated by the RN( if patient unable 
to state or stand for scale) or taken by a scale and documented in kg. Patients requiring weight 
related medication dosages or have known medical conditions like CHF or Renal failure that 
require weight monitoring will be weighed on a scale if patient condition permits, and as nursing 
judgment dictates. 

Cardiac Monitoring 
All patients placed on a cardiac monitor will have a strip generated in leads II and V.  

 
Height- 

   Heights will be obtained when warranted. 
  Finger-stick Blood Glucose (FSBS)- 

FSBS will be obtained on any patient with a pertinent complaint, ALOC or when medical history 
indicates.  

Mental Status- 
The Glasgow Coma Scale will be used on admission to the ED to evaluate neurological status, 
and will be reevaluated as indicated by chief complaint, medical history or as nursing judgment 
dictates 

       5.  Triage protocols may be initiated by triage nurse or primary nurse based on patient assessment and severity range 
             according to ESI level. 

6.  All patient care will be individualized and planned in accordance with the patients’ special needs, age and  
      complaints.  
7.  Assessments and patient needs are communicated to the Emergency Physician or Qualified Medical Person  
      (QMP). 
8.  A multi-disciplinary approach will be utilized to coordinate care with in-hospital entities and community based  
      agencies.  
 9.  All patients are seen, treated and stabilized as appropriate without regard of ability to pay. 
10. Patients will be oriented to the ED room and environment. 

81



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standards of Care for the Emergency Department 
Scope:  Emergency Department (ED) Manual:  Emergency Department Standards of practice 
Source:  Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date:  09/05/06 
 

11. Nursing care will be provided in a safe and therapeutic environment. 
12.  The patient will receive safe administration of medications and treatments prescribed. 

B. Throughout Stay:   
  1. All patients will be continually assessed for change and progress towards meeting outcome goals and discharge  

       objectives.   
       2. Changes in patient condition are appropriately charted in the electronic health record ( EHR )and communicated to    
           QMP and treatment changes carried out accordingly. 
       3.  Evaluations of  patient response to interventions and outcomes are documented in EHR. 
C. On Admission to the Hospital: 
       1. Admission Procedure of Emergency Room Patient to the Hospital Policy will be followed. 

a. Patients admitted to the Intensive Care Unit will be accompanied by an ACLS  qualified RN and placed on a 
cardiac monitor  during transport. 

D. On Transfer to another Facility: 
        1. The EMTALA policy will be followed when transferring ED patients to another facility for higher level of care. 

2. All patients should be provided a medical screening examination (MSE) and stabilizing treatment within the 
capacity of the facility before transfer.  

a. If a competent patient requests transfer before the completion of the MSE and stabilizing treatment, these 
services should be offered to the patient and informed refusal documented. 

3. The QMP is responsible for informing the patient or responsible party of the risks and the benefits of  transfer  and 
document these. Before transfer, patient consent should be obtained and documented whenever possible. 
4. Agreement to accept the patient in transfer should be obtained from a physician or responsible individual at the 
receiving hospital in advance of transfer.  
5. All pertinent records and copies of imaging studies will accompany the patient to the receiving facility or be 
electronically transferred as soon as is practical. 
6.  Proper personnel and equipment, as well as necessary and medically appropriate life –support measures must 
accompany the patient during transport. 
7. Assessments and patient needs will be continually assessed and treated in the ED while patient is awaiting transfer 
to another facility. 
8. Family or responsible person will be apprised of ongoing care and status of patient transfer. 

E. On Discharge: 
      1.  The patient and family will receive education to promote understanding of his/her diagnostic condition, and after     
            Care instructions. 
      2.  Discharge instructions will be given according to Discharge Instructions in the ED policy. 
      3.  Discharge instructions will be generated in the Computerized Discharge Instructions Program with information on 
           Diagnosis, Medications if appropriate, Follow- up, any equipment, wound care or custom instructions according to  
           Emergency Physician 
      3.  Multidisciplinary and community resources shall be utilized to improve patient recovery as needed. 
      4. Patients are discharged to self, family, or responsible party.  
      5. Patients from assisted living facility or extended care facility will receive verbal after care instructions from primary  
          ED RN along with typed instructions. 
      6. If there are pending cultures or results on patient discharge, patient follow up call will be done by ED physician or 
          ED RN under physician’s direction..  

a. The triage nurse will check daily for any positive lab results. The present ED physician is notified of 
positive results and given a chart copy for medications or treatment on patient’s previous discharge. 
b. Any changes in treatment or medications will be ordered by present ED physician and patient shall be 
notified by phone of any recommended physician changes if any. Three attempts will be made to notify 
patient. If unable to notify patient, results will be sent to primary doctor. If no local primary doctor, 
notification will be done by mail. 
c. Any notes or addendums will be charted in final lab copy and sent to Medical Records 
d. All results and follow up calls will be noted in “ To Be Check” binder.  

82



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Standards of Care for the Emergency Department 
Scope:  Emergency Department (ED) Manual:  Emergency Department Standards of practice 
Source:  Manager - Emergency Department Effective Date:  09/05/06 
 
 
F.  On Expiration: 
      1.  All deaths in the Emergency Department are reported to the Nursing Supervisor. 
      2.  If possible, a nurse should accompany doctor when family is notified. 

      3.  Social Services will be notified of any deaths in ED for family support.  

      4. Where appropriate, Social Services can offer and/or arrange for community support follow-up for  

          relatives, i.e., social worker, psychiatric help. 
      5. Any patient belongings are returned to family if available. 
      6. Disposal of body and notifications for organ procurement are done by the House Supervisor. 
      7. Policy and procedure will be followed for Coroner’s cases. 
       
 
 
REFERENCE: 
       1. EMTALA: A Guide to Patient Anti Dumping Laws. ( 2009) 
      2. JCAHO NC3.1.2 2005/ Emergency Nursing and Quality Improvement Standards of Care; W.B. Saunders 1994 
      3. Potter PA, Perry AG. Basic Nursing; Essentials for practice. 6th edn. Mosby; St Louis.2007. 
 
CROSS-REFERENCE: 

1. Admission Procedure of the Emergency Room Patient to the Hospital 
2. Patient Admission Procedure to ICU 
3. EMTALA Policy 
4. Evaluation and Screening of Patients Presenting to Emergency Department. 
5. Patients Rights 
6. Plan for the Provision of Nursing Care 
7. Coroner’s Cases 

 
   
   
 
Approval Date 
CCOC 1/29/18 
Emergency Services Committee 3/14/18 
Medical Executive Committee 4/3/18 
Board of Directors  
Last Board of Director review  
   

 - 
Initiated: 12/96 
Revised: 02/20, 03/06, 09/06 (AS), 1/2018 gr  
Reviewed: 

 
 
 

83



Emergency Room Service Critical Indicators 

2018 

1. Physician and Staff Concerns 
2. All non-5150 Transfers 
3. Formal Patient Complaints 
4. Pt. Refusal of Treatment, AMA, or Elopements 
5. Unscheduled Return or Admit Seen Within 48 Hours 
6. All Codes, Deaths, and Critical Patients 
7. ED Acquired Infections 
8.7. Death Within 24 Hours of Visit 
9.8. Laceration Repair With Recheck Concern 
10.9. Specific Procedures 

a) Procedural Moderate and Deep Sedation 
11.10. All Incoming Transfers 
12.11. Suicide or Attempted Suicide in the ED 
13. Nosocomial Infections (For Referral) 
14.12. Concern Regarding Quality of Pre-Hospital Care 
15.13. Unscheduled ED Visit of Pt. Discharged Within 72 Hours 

 

Approvals: 

Emergency Room Service Committee: 1/10/2018 3/14/2018 
Medical Executive Committee: 2/6/2018 4/3/18 
Board of Directors: 2/21/2018  
 

84




